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Milroy, Shannon

From: noreply@civicplus.com
Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 12:20 PM
To: ATax Communications
Subject: Online Form Submittal: Accommodations Tax Grant Application

WARNING!  

This email originated from outside of the Town of Bluffton's email system. DO NOT click any links or open any 

attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

 

Accommodations Tax Grant Application 
 

  

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

 
 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX 
GRANT APPLICATION 

Accommodations Tax 
Grant Application 
Instructions 

Accommodations Tax Grant Application Instructions  

Accommodations Tax 
Grant Application 
Instructions 

I have read and acknowledged the Town of Bluffton, SC 

Accommodations Tax Grant Application Instructions. 

(Section Break) 

Application Date 3/27/2024  

Full Legal Organization 
Name 

Hilton Head Symphony Orchestra, Inc. 

Project Name Hilton Head Symphony Orchestra 2024 Bluffton Concerts 

Total Project Costs $89,710 

Total ATAX Funds 
Requested 

$43,632 

Percent of Total Budget 48.64% 

Address 7 Lagoon Road 

 

Attachment 4



2

Street Address Line 2 Suite 100 

City Hilton Head Island 

State SC 

Zip Code 29928 

Applicant must be 
designated as a non-
profit entity to receive 
ATAX funds. Please 
include a copy of your 
organization's non-profit 
status, such as your IRS 
Designation Letter. 

501C-3 letter 2008-02-07.pdf  

Please upload a copy of 
your current Town of 
Bluffton Business 
License, which is 
required of all 
applicants. 

Bluffton Business License exp. 2024-04-30.pdf  

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

Organization Primary Point of Contact 

First Name Alan 

Last Name Jordan 

Title President and CEO 

Phone Number 8438422055 

E-mail Address ajordan@hhso.org  

(Section Break) 

Organization Secondary Point of Contact 

First Name Field not completed. 

Last Name Field not completed. 

Title Field not completed. 

Phone Number Field not completed. 
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E-mail Address Field not completed. 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

Project Description:  The Hilton Head Symphony Orchestra will present two concerts 

in Bluffton during 2024 as part of its 2024-2025 concert 

season. On Thursday, October 17, 2024, the HHSO will 

produce a free outdoor pops concert at Martin Family Park as 

the opening event of the final weekend of the Historic Bluffton 

Arts and Seafood Festival—the fourth such annual partnership. 

On Saturday, November 30, 2024, the HHSO will perform a 

Holiday Pops Concert at the St. Gregory the Great Catholic 

Church Parish Life Center with reasonably-priced tickets to 

appeal to families visiting during the holidays. Both concerts 

will be conducted by Music Director John Morris Russell. Vocal 

soloists will be engaged for the concerts and the Hilton Head 

Symphony Orchestra Chorus will be featured during the 

Holiday Pops Concert. 

 
 
All advertising/marketing paid for with Town of Bluffton Accommodations Tax 
dollars must incorporate the branding shown here: Town of Bluffton Brand 
Standards. The use of the Town’s logo must meet the design standards 
outlined at the aforementioned link and be approved by the Town. Designs 
may be submitted electronically using this link. Please allow five (5) business 
days for approval.  

Impact on or Benefit to 
Tourism: 

The Historic Bluffton Arts and Seafood Festival is a traditional 

mainstay of the region’s cultural calendar, drawing 25,000 

visitors to downtown Bluffton during the 9-day festival. The free 

outdoor pops concert is primarily designed to enhance the 

visitor experience, and it is anticipated to draw approximately 

1,100 people, with 20% of them identified as tourists. Out-of-

town patrons regularly attend HHSO presentations, both in 

Bluffton and on Hilton Head Island. As has been done 

previously, residency data will be collected at this free outdoor 

performance through an online contest with winners receiving 

prizes (i.e., restaurant and retail store gift certificates). 

Attendees will be encouraged to complete a brief and fun 

contest on their mobile devices. Demographic data will be 

drawn from these contest submissions, analyzed, and reported. 

The HHSO has presented Holiday Pops concerts at St. 

Gregory the Great in 2019, 2021, 2022, and 2023, to capacity 

crowds that drew tourists, visitors, and residents during the 

Thanksgiving holiday weekend. 401 audience members 

attended the 2023 presentation, with 4.53% of these identified 

as tourists. [A significant number of the tickets purchased by 
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residents were for large groups—several of five or six—

suggesting that out-of-town visitors (some of whom may have 

stayed in Bluffton hotels) were holiday guests of these local 

ticket-buyers.] Residency data was, and will be, collected at the 

time of ticket purchase. The two concerts will be promoted 

widely, with flyers liberally distributed in area hotels, vacation 

rental offices, restaurants, retail spaces, and at the 

Savannah/Hilton Head International Airport and at interstate 

rest areas across South Carolina; paid local and regional print 

and broadcast advertising (in coordination with Historic Bluffton 

Arts and Seafood Festival marketing for the October concert) 

and through an aggressive social media campaign. 

 
 
“Tourist” means a person who does not reside within the corporate limits of 
the Town or within a Town zip code that takes a trip into the corporate limits 
of the Town for any purpose, except daily commuting to and from work. 

“Travel” and “Tourism” mean the action and activities of people taking trips 
outside their home communities for any purpose, except daily commuting to 
and from work. 

(Section Break) 

Project/Event Start & 
End Date: 

10/17/2024 - 11/30/2024  

Multi-Year 
Project/Event? 

No 

Permits Required, if any: (required permits will be secured by Historic Bluffton Arts and 

Seafood Festival for the October 17, 2024 concert) 

Additional Comments: The HHSO continues to work on the long-range goal of regular, 

annual concerts presented in Bluffton, complementing its 

traditional performances on Hilton Head Island, in an effort to 

broaden its reach throughout Beaufort County, especially 

“South of the Broad.” Bluffton also represents a closer and 

more convenient destination for visitors from Savannah, 

Beaufort, and beyond. Of course, the HHSO also is working to 

build its legion of fans who consider Bluffton home. With the 

experiences of the first three years of Outdoor Pops concerts in 

October, 2021, 2022, and 2023, and our developing 

collaboration with the Arts and Seafood Festival, the HHSO 

and the Festival are both in better positions to improve 

promotion and logistical partnerships to increase concert 

participation and support. 
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We are requesting support in the amount of $43,632 to pay for 

the following expenses: 

• venue rental of $500; 

• port-o-lets rental of $259 (pro-rated at est. tourist percentage); 

• tent, stage, and HVAC rentals of $21,439; 

• sound and lighting equipment rental of $5,011; 

• media advertising of $14,172; and 

• print materials and program inserts of $2,251 (that will also 

extend the promotion beyond the live performance). 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

Project/Event Line Item 
Budget 

2024 Project Budget.pdf  

Most Recent Fiscal Year 
Balance Sheet and 
Profit and Loss 
Accounting Statement 

Audit 2023-06-30 HHSO.pdf  

Financial Guarantee Minutes 2024-03-21.pdf  

 
 
Applicant must provide a copy of official minutes wherein the sponsoring 
organization approves the project and commits the organization to financial 
responsibility for carrying it out to the stage of completion.  

(Section Break) 

 
 
Please list all contributions made to the project/event by the sponsoring 
organization. This shall include both monetary and in-kind goods and/or 
services, as applicable.  

Contribution  Pro-Rated Annual Fund 

Amount/Value $12,500 

Contribution Other Income (General Funds) 

Amount/Value $1,500 

(Section Break) 
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Have you requested, 
received or been 
awarded funding from 
other sources or 
organizations (including 
additional ATAX funds 
from other local 
entities) for this 
project/event? 

Yes 

If yes, please list all sources and amounts: 

Funding Source Table/Ticket Sales 

Amount $13,500 

Funding Source Sponsorship/Underwriting 

Amount $18,000 

Funding Source Field not completed. 

Amount Field not completed. 

Funding Source Field not completed. 

Amount Field not completed. 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

PRIOR RECIPIENT'S REPORT 
 
If your organization has received ATAX funding from the Town of Bluffton in 
previous years, you must complete the below information. Only the information for 
the most recent round of funding is required. 

If you have not received ATAX funding from the Town of Bluffton, please answer 
"No" and skip this section, and sign and submit your application. 

Has your organization 
previously received 
ATAX funds from the 
Town of Bluffton? 

Yes 

Project/Event Name Hilton Head Symphony Orchestra 2023 Concerts 

Year 2023 

Amount Awarded 48,628 
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Was project 
completed? 

Yes 

How were the funds 
used? 

The HHSO presented an outdoor pops concert on Thursday, 

October 19, 2023, at Martin Family Park, and a Holiday Pops 

Concert at the St. Gregory the Great Catholic Church Parish 

Life Center on Saturday, November 25, 2023. 

What impact did this 
project/event have on 
the community or 
benefit tourism? 
Describe how the 
tourism data was 
measured. 

These events were advertised in the Bluffton Sun, Hilton Head 

Sun, Local Life, on WTOC, and WHHI, on South Carolina 

Public Radio, and through multiple social media 

communications including promotion to our 5,000+ e-mail list 

derived from area residents, visitors, and tourists who attend 

our events. They were also included in season brochures, 

widely distributed (including at the Savannah/Hilton Head 

International Airport) and on rack cards distributed to Bluffton 

hotels and downtown businesses. We retrieved addresses from 

direct telephone and online ticket purchases. Based on contest 

responses, 86 (7.44%) of the estimated 1,000 attendees of our 

October 19, 2023, performance were tourists. For the 

November 25, 2023, concert, 18 (4.53%) attendees were 

tourists. As noted elsewhere, the number of tourists and 

visitors for November 25, 2023, is very likely larger, since 

tickets purchased by residents often included large groups; we 

believe many of these Thanksgiving holiday guests were out-

of-town visitors. 

 

We were disappointed that our tourist percentages at both 

performances decreased from our 2022 levels. Working with 

our Historic Bluffton Arts and Seafood Festival partners and 

media outlets, we will strategize ways to boost those 

percentages closer to 2022 levels. 

(Section Break) 

Please provide the 
project/event budgets 
for the previous two (2) 
years. 

2023 and 2022 Project Budget v. Actual.pdf  

Additional Comments Field not completed. 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 
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All applicants will be required to come before the Accommodations Tax 
Advisory Committee (ATAC) and answer any and all questions when 
scheduled to do so. 

Any organization awarded funds for advertising/marketing must incorporate 
the Bluffton Heart of the Lowcountry brand logo in all promotional materials 
and advertising. 

The South Carolina Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) defines a “public 
body” as any organization or corporation supported in whole or in part by 
public funds or expending public funds. If awarded, your organization's 
acceptance of public funds from the Town of Bluffton may cause your 
organization to come within the meaning of “public body” as defined by the 
Freedom of Information Act. S.C. Code Ann. §30-4-10, et seq. (Supp. 2002). 
Accordingly, this is to advise that by accepting public funds, your 
organization may be subject to the South Carolina Freedom of Information 
Act. 

By submitting this application, the organization certifies that it has read and 
understands the paragraphs above. The organization additionally certifies 
that it does not discriminate in any manner on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, age, sex, disability, religion, or language and that all funds 
that may be received by the applicant organization from the Town of Bluffton, 
South Carolina will be solely used for the purposes set forth in this 
application and will comply with all laws and statutes, including the South 
Carolina Code of Laws regarding Allocations of Accommodations Tax 
Revenues. 

 
 
By typing your name below, you are signing this application electronically. 
You agree that your electronic signature is the legal equivalent of your 
manual signature on this application.  

Signature Alan Jordan 

Signatory's Title or 
Position 

President and CEO 

 

  

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.  
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TOWN OF BLUFFTON

DATE ISSUED

LIC-09-23-052015

LICENSE NUMBER

EXPIRES BUSINESS ID

COMPANY NAME

April 30, 2024 019155-2023

Hilton Head Symphony Orchestra, Inc.

Musical Groups and Artists

DBA NAME

Hilton Head Symphony Orchestra

September 11, 2023

Musical Performances, Education and Community Outreach

BUSINESS TYPE

DESCRIPTION/CONDITIONS

PO Box 5757
Hilton Head Island SC 29938

7 Lagoon RD 100
Hilton Head Island SC 29928
BUSINESS LOCATION MAILING LOCATION

ALL BUSINESSES LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF BLUFFTON MUST POST THE BUSINESS LICENSE IN A VISIBLE LOCATION WITHIN THE BUSINESS 

LOCATION AS REFERENCED ABOVE AND IS VALID FOR THIS LOCATION ONLY.  ALL BUSINESSES LOCATED OUTSIDE THE TOWN OF BLUFFTON 

MUST KEEP A CURRENT COPY WHILE CONDUCTING BUSINESS INSIDE THE TOWN OF BLUFFTON.  CHANGE IN LOCATION OR OWNERSHIP  

REQUIRES A NEW LICENSE.  IF THE BUSINESS IS CLOSED, CONTACT OUR OFFICE AT 843-706-4501 TO UPDATE ACCOUNT.

Section 6-21  Purpose and Duration of Business License

The business license levied by this ordinance is for the purpose of providing such regulation as may be required for the business subject thereto and for 

the purpose of raising revenue for the general fund through a privilege tax. Each license shall be issued for one (1) calendar year ending December 31. 

The provisions of this ordinance and the rates herein shall remain in effect from year to year as amended by Town Council.

Renewal Process

Renewal notices are mailed in January of each year to all active businesses. 

Section 6-22-A   License Tax.

The required license tax shall be paid for each business subject hereto according to the applicable rate classification on or before the thirtieth (30th) day 

of April in each year.

Hilton Head Symphony Orchestra

PO Box 5757
Hilton Head Island SC 29938

Construction within the Town of Bluffton 
shall only occur during the hours of 

7:00am - 7:00pm Monday thru Saturday 
and 12:00pm - 7:00pm on Sunday.
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HILTON HEAD SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA
2024 BLUFFTON CONCERTS PROJECT BUDGET

March 27, 2024

Revenues

Table/Ticket Sales $1,500 $1,500 $12,000 $13,500

Private Support $25,000 $5,500 $30,500
Sponsorship and Underwriting $15,000 $3,000 $18,000
Pro-rated Annual Fund $10,000 $2,500 $12,500

Public Support $35,420 $8,212 $43,632

Other Income $1,500 $0 $1,500

TOTAL REVENUES $63,420 $25,712 $89,132

Expenses

Artistic $23,716 $10,036 $33,752
Guess Artist Expenses $2,250 $1,628 $3,878
Orchestra Musician Expenses $21,466 $8,408 $29,874

Production $28,342 $2,150 $30,492
Production Labor and Security $500 $500
Venue Rental $0 * $500 * $500 *
Port-O-Lets $1,292 * $0 $1,292 *
Tent, Stage, and HVAC $21,439 * $0 $21,439 *
Sound and Lighting $4,611 * $400 * $5,011 *
Music Library $1,000 $750 $1,750

Marketing $9,111 $7,312 $16,424
Media Advertising $7,503 * $6,669 * $14,172 *
Print Materials/Program Inserts $1,608 * $643 * $2,251 *

Development $0 $0 $0

General & Administrative $6,117 $2,925 $9,042

TOTAL EXPENSES $67,286 $22,424 $89,710

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ($3,866) $3,289 ($576)

* - allowable expense for which Bluffton ATAX Funds are requested

Outdoor Pops-October Holiday Pops TOTAL
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HILTON HEAD SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES: Thursday, March 21, 2024 
 
 
The meeting was held in the SoundWaves Board Room, with Carol Hack, Arthur Handman, Mike 
Harter, Eric Magnin, and Alan Jordan attending in person. Bob Cherichella was unavailable due 
to travel obligations. 
 
Harter called the meeting to order at 10:04 am. 
 
It was moved by Hack, and seconded by Magnin, that the minutes of the February 15, 2024, 
meeting be approved as presented; motion passed (Handman abstained). 
 
The February 29, 2024, Financial Report was reviewed. A prolonged discussion ensued about 
future strategic programming adjustments that could positively impact future years’ budgets.  
 
Handman reported on the Finance Committee’s discussion of increasing the threshold for 
requirement of a second signature on checks and e-checks. It was moved by Magnin, and 
seconded by Handman, that the Executive Committee recommend to the Board at its March 
28, 2024, meeting that the threshold be increased from $2,500 to $5,000 for second 
signatures on HHSO checks and e-checks; motion passed. 
 
The Board of Directors meeting agenda was reviewed, with additions for reporting on an 
anticipated line of credit draw, the check signature recommendation, and a Board Development 
Committee report. 
 
Upon a request from Jordan, it was moved by Hack, and seconded by Handman, that the 
Executive Committee act on behalf of the Board of Directors and approve submission of a 
grant request of $43,632 to the Town of Bluffton Accommodations Tax Advisory Committee 
for calendar year 2024; motion passed. 
 
Because of some members’ conflicts, the next meeting was re-scheduled to take place on 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024, at 10:00 am in the SoundWaves Board Room. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned by consensus at 11:02 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Alan Jordan, President and CEO 
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